
UNITED STA.TESDISTNCT COURT 
SOUTHERNDISTRICT OFFZORXDA 

Case No. 05 - 61559 Civ - MarralSeItzer 

FEDERAL, T W E  C O m S S I O N ,  

Plaintiff, 

v. 

TRANSBZT WIRELESS CORPOR4Tl[ON, 
a Florida corporation, 

NATIONWIDE CYBER SYSTEMS, MC., 
a Xilorida corporation, 

PAUL PEMBERTON, 
individually, and as owner, officer, or 
manager of one or more of the above-listed 
corporations, 

FARRTS PEMBERTON, 
individually, and as owner, officer, or 

' manager of  one or more of the above-listed 
corporatio~ls,and 

B W L E Y  CARTWXCIGI.XT, 
individually, aud as an owner, officer, or 
manager of one or more of the above-listed 
corporations, 

and 

Relief Defendant. 
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The Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission ("FTCJ or "Commi~sion'~),having filed a 

Complaint for hj-cmctivt?and Other Equitable Relief, hcluding redress to cor~sunlels,pursua~tto 

Sections 5(a), 13@), and 19 of the Federal Trade Comissictn Act (TTC Act"), 15U.S.C. 

6s 45(a), 53@) and 57b, and the FTC's Trade Regulation Rule mti~led'Bisclosurc 

Requirementsand PIohibitions Concerning Franchising and Business O p p o d t y  Ventures" (Ihc 

"Franchise Rule" or the ";Culc"), 16 C.F.R. Part 436, and having moved ibr an et-purfe 

temporary restrainkg order ("TRO") pursuant to Rule 65 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 

and S.D. F1a. L.R. 7.I .E, and the Court having considered the Complaint, declarations, exhibits, 

arid menzorandum of law filed izl support of the PlaintifPs motion, finds that: 

1. This Court has jurisdiction of the subject matter of this case and there is good 

cause to believe it will have jurisdiction of allparties hereto. 

2. There is good cause to believe that the Defendants Transnct Wireless Corporation. 

Nationwide Cyber Systems, Inc.,Paul Pemberton, Fanis Pemberton, and Bradley Cartwright and 

Relief Defendant Margaret Pemberton have engaged and are likely lo engage in acts and 

practices that violate Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 9 4S(a), and/or the Franchise Rule, 

16 C-F.R.Part 436, and that the Commission is therefore likely to prevail on the merits of this 

action. 

3. There is good cause to believe that immediate and irreparable damage to the 

Court's ability to grant effective finalrelief in tlile fom of monetary restitution or disgorgement 

will occur fiom the sale, transfer, or othcr disposition or concealme~lt by the Defet~dalts of their 

assets or corporate records unless the Defendants are immediately restraned and enjoined by 

Order of this Court. The evidence set forth in fhc "PlaintifTFederal Trade ConmxissionJs 

h4emorandum of Points and Authorities Supportingthe Motion for an Ex Parte Temporary 

Restraining OrderY'andin the accompanyingdeclarations and exhibits, shows hat  thc 

Defendants have engaged in a concerted course of illegal activity in connecrioil wit11 the 

advertismn~,promotion, offering for sale, sale or servicing of the "public access intcmet kiosks or 

tenninals" business ventures to consumers lat ti on wide, in violation of Section 5 of the FTC ,4ct, 

15 U S .C. 5 45 and the Franchise Rule, 16 C.F.R Part 436. Thus, there is good cause LO bclleve 

that the Defendants will attempt to conceal the scope of thcir illegal actions and to avoid 
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returning their ill-goaen gains to consumers injured by their mlawful practices if not restrained 

fromdoing so by Order of this Court. lir accordance with Fed. R. Civ. P. 65@),good cause 

therefore exists for issuing t h i s  TRO on an basis without notice to the Defendants. 

4. There is good cause for the Court to order an asset fkeeze as to ail Defendants and 

appoint a temporary Receiver i'br the Corporate Defendants. The Corporate Defendants, while 

under the control of the Individual Defendants,have made nlisrepresentations, directly or 

indirectly, to induce consrmers to purchase the internet kiosk business ventures. While 

marketing these business venmres, the Defendants have also failed to provide strbstatial 

disclosures prescribed by the Franchise Rule. Thc Defendants have retained ill-gotten gains h m  

these and other practices, and a temporary Recclver and asset freeze are necessary in ordcr to 

preserve the possibility of complete and meaningful relief at the conclusion of this litigation. 

5. Weighing the equities and c o n s i d e ~ gthe Conmission's Iikelil~oodof ultima~e 

success, a temporary restraining order with asset freeze, appointment of a temporary Receiver, 

and olher equitable relief is  in the public interest. 

6.  As an agency of the United States, no s~curity is required of the Comn~issionfor 

the issuance of a restraining ordcr. SeeFed. R. Civ. P. 65(c). 

Definitions 

Far the purpose of'this Temporary Rcstrainrng Order ("TRO), the following definitions 

shall apply: 

1. "'Assets" means any legal or equitable interest in, right to, or claim to, any real aid 

personal property, including, but not limited to chattel, goods, instnunents, equipmcn~,fixtures, 

general intangibles, inventory, checks, nates, leaseholds, efkcts, contracts, mail or ollter 

deliveries, shares of stock, lists of consumer namcs, accounls, credits, premises, receivables, 

funds, and cash, wherever located, whether in the United States or abroad. 

2 .  i'A Busincss venture"' means any written or oraf business arrangement, however 

dcl~ominatd, whether or not covered by the Fran~l-riseRule, which cons~stsof the payment of 

any consideration for: 

a. the right or means ro offer, sell, or distribute goods or senices (whether or 
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not identified by a trademark, servicemark, trade name, advertising, or 

other commercial smbol); and 

b. 	 more than nominal assistance to any person or entity in connection with or 

incident to the eskblish~ent,maintenance, or operation o f  a new business 

or thc entry by an existing business into a new line or type of business. 

3. "Corporate Defe~dants"means Transnet Wireless Corporation and Nat ion~de  

C@er Systms, Inc., and tfleir successors, assigns, affiliatesor subsidiaries; 

4. 'Defendants" means (a) each Corporate Defenclant; @) each Individual 

Defendant; (c) anyperson insofar as he or she is acting in the capacity of an officer, agent, 

servant, employee or attorney of my Corporate Defendant or any Individual Defendant; and (dj 

anjr person acting in active concert or participation with any of the foregoingwho receives acrual 

notice of this Order by personal service or othcmise. See Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(d). 

5 .  "Individual Defendants" n~eansPaul Pembmon, Fanis Pembmon, Bradley 

Casrwright, and Margaret Pmberton. 

6 .  "Docment" is synonymous in meaning and equal in scope 10 the usage of the 

tern1 in Federal Rule of Civil Proccdure 34{a), and includes writings, drawings, graphs, charts. 

photographs, audio and video recordings, computer records, and other data compilations from 

which information can be obtained and translated,if necessary, through detcction devices into 

reitsonably usable fann. A draft or non-identicaI copy o f  a docurnennt is a separate docurne111 

within the meaning of the rem. 

7. "Person" means a natural person, an organization or other legal entity, including a 

corporation, pmlership, sole proprietorship, Zinlited liability con~pitl~y, association, or 

cooperative, or any other group or combination acting as an entity. 
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ORDER 

I. VIOLATIONS OF SECTlON 5 OF THE FTC ACT PROHmXTIED 

ITIS TmmFOmORDERED that, in connection with the offering for sale or selling of 

any business venture, including a franchise, or location services, Defendants are hereby 

temporarily restrained and enjoined from making any material misrepresentation or assisting 

others in making any materid misrepresentation, either expressly or by implication, to any 

prospective purchaser of such business venture or senices, including, but not limited to, the 

following: 

A. 	 that consumers who pwc11~1~e Defendants' business ventures or services are likely 

to earn substantial inconle, are likely to e m  a specific amount or range of money, 

are likely ta lzave a certain number of transactions; or are likely to recoup or earn 

back their investment within a specified time period; and 

B. 	 itrat Defendants will provide p~rrcl~asers with profitable, prime, or other locations 

in which to place the purchasers' kiosks. 

I7.VIOLATIONS OF THE FR4NCHXSERULE PROHIBITED 

ITIS FlJRTHER ORDERED that Defendants are hereby temporarily restrained a ~ d  

enjoined from violating or assisting others to violate any provisions of the Franchise Rule, 16 

C F.R. Part 436, including, but not limited to, restrained and enjoined fkozn: 

A. 	 failing to provide a prospective purchaser with a complete and accurate disclosure 

document, as prescribed by ale Franchise Rule, 16 C.F.R. $436.1(a); 

B. 	 failing to provide a prospective purchaser with an earnings claim document, as 

prescribed by the Fran~hiseRule, 16 C.F.R. $436.1@), (c), and (e); 

C, 	 failing to disclose, in imt~ediate conjunclion wit11 any generally disseminarcd 

('%idvertised") earnings claim, information required by the Frmchse Rule, 

mclud.tngthe number and percentage of  prior ywrchascrs known by the 

Defmdants to kave achieved the samc or better results, as required by the 

Franchise Rule, 16 C.F.R. 9 436.1@), (c), and (e); 

30, 	 failing to kave a reasonable basis for any emlings claim at the time such claim is 



made, as required by the Franchise Rule, 16 C.P.R. $ 436.1@),(c),and (e); 

E-	 failing to disclose, ia immediate conjunction with any earnings claim, and in a 

clear and conspicuous manner, that material which constitutes a reasonable basis 

for the earnings claim is available to the prospective purchasers; 

F. 	 failing to provide material wlGch, constitutesa reasonable basis for any eatlings 

claim to prospectivepurchasers, the Commission, or its sraff upon reasonable 

dcmand; and 

G. 	 making claims or representations to prospective purchasers Chat are contradictou 

to the infomation required to be disclosed by Section 436.1 of the Rule, 

111. ASSET FREEZE 

IT IS F W R m R  ORDERED that the Defendants are hereby temporarily restrained and 

enjoined from: 

A. 	 Transferring, converting, encumbering, selling, concealing, dissipating, 

disbursing, assigning, spending, withdrawing, or othcmise disposing of my 

assets, wherever located that arc (a) owned or controlled, in whole or in part, by 

any Corporate Defendant or hdividual Defendant; @) titled OT held in d ~ e  nanc, 

singly orjointly, of any Corporate Defendant or Individual Defendant; (c) in the 

actual or constructive possession of any Corporate Defendant 01- fndlvidual 

Defendant; or (d) owned, colltrolled by, or in the actual or consmctive possession 

of any corporation, partnership, or other entity directly or indirecrIy owned, 

managed, or controltled by, or uzldcr com.nlon control with, any Corporate 

Defendant or Individual Defendant, including, but not lin~ired to, any asscts held 

by or fbr any Corporate Defendant or Individual Defendant at any bank or savings 

and loa11 institution, or wit11 any broker-dealer, escrow agent, tltle company, 

insurauce agent, commodity trading company, prccious rneial dealer, other 

financial institution, or oQcr depository of any kind; 

B, 	 Openmg or causing to be opened any safe deposit boxes or other srorage facillry 

or container titled in the name of or subject to access by any Corporate Defendant 
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or hdividual Dafendmt; 

C. 	 Incu~hgcllarges or cash advances on any credit card, debit card, or checking card 

issued in the name, singly orjointly, of any Corporate Defendant or hdividual 

Defendatlt; and 

D. 	 Securing a loan with or i n c d g  a Een on the real property, the personal property, 

or other asset in the nme,  singly or jointly, of any Corporate Defendant or 

Individual Defendant, 

Notwithstandkg provisions of this Section, Defendants shall transfer a11 assets of file 

Receivership Defendants pursuant to Paragraph JX.of this Order. 

Provided, however, that the assets aEfected by this Section shall include: (1) all of the 

assets of the Corporate Defendants and Individual Defendants existing as of the date this Order is 

entered; and (2) for assets obtained after d ~ edate this Order is entered, only those assets of the 

Corporate D~fendmtsand the Individual Defendants &at are derived fkom or otherwise related to 

he sale of business venturss or location services. 

1%'. DUTIES OF. ASSET HOLDERS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, pending determination of the PIaintifts request for a 

preliminary injunction, any financial or brokerage institution, business cnlity, ox-person that 

holds, con1rols or maintains custody of my account or asset titled in the name of, held for the 

bellefir of, or othenvise under the control of any Corporate Defendant or Individual Defendant, or 

has held, ~0ntroIledor rnain~ained custody of any such accounl or asset at any tjxne since January 

1,2002, shall: 

A-	 Prohibit any person or entity flrom withdrawing, removing, assigning, transfening, 

pledging, encumbeling, disbtusing, dissipating, converting, selling, or otber\.vlse 

disposing of any such asset except: 

1. 	 as directed by further order of the Court; or 

2.  	 for assets held in Ihe name or for the benefit of any Receivership 

Defendant, as directed by the ten~poraryReceiver appointed herein; 

B. Deny any person or-entity access to any safe deposit box or other storagc facillly 
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that is: 

1. 	 titled in the name.of any Corporate Defendant or Individual 

Defendant, either individually orjointly; or 

2, o t h e d s e  held for the benefit of or subject to access by any Corporate 

Defendant or Individual Defendant. 

Nomithstandhg these subsections, the temporary Receiver appointed herein shall 

be provided with access to rn l r  safe deposit box or other storag!: facility or 

container individuallyorjointly titled in the name of, subject to access by, or held 

for the benefit of any Receivership defendant. 

C. 	 Provide counsel for the Conxmission and the temporary Receiver appointed 

herein, widlin five (5) business days of receiving a copy of this Order, a sworn 

statement setting forth: 

1. 	 the identification number of each such account or asset titled in the name. 

individually or jointly, or lleld on behalf of, or for the benefit of, any 

Corporate Defendant or Individual Defexxdan~; 

2.  	 the balance of each such account, or a description of the nature and value 

of such asset as of the time this Order is served, and, if the accormt or 

other asset has been closed or removed, the datc closed or removed, the 

total funds rcrnovcd in order to close fhe account, and the name of the 

person or entity Lo whom such account or other asset was remitted; and 

3. 	 the identification o f  any safe deposit box or other storage faciXity or 

container thar is either titled in itle name of any Corporate Defendant or 

I~zdividualDefendant, individually or jointly, or is o t h e d s e  subjcct to 

access by any Corporate Defendant or Individual Defendant; 

D, 	 Upon the request by the remporary Rcceivcr or the Commission, promptly provide 

the temporary Recciver and the Conlrrrission with copies of all records or other 

docuinentation pe~ainingto such accolint or asset, including but not Limited ro 

originaIs or copies af account a~~plications,account stalemcnts, signature cards, 

checks, drafts, deposit tickets, transfers to and fiom the accomts, all other debit 
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and credit insments or slips, currency transaction reports, 1099 fonns, and safe 

deposit box logs; a d  

E. 	 Cooperate with all reasonable requests of the temporary Receiver relating to 

in~plcnlentationof this Order, includrng the transferring of funds. 

V. FOREIGN ASSET REPATWTION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that within five (5 )  business days following the senice of 

this Order, each Corporate Defendant and llildividual Defendant shall: 

A, Provide the Conunissionand the temporary Receiver with a full accounting a€all 

h d s ,  documents, and assets located outside of the United States whicll are (1) 

titled in the name, individually or jointly, of' anyCorporate Defendant or 

Individual Defendant; or (2) held by any person or entity for the benefit of m y  

Corporate Defendant or Individual Defendant; or (3) l~nderthe direct or indirect 

co~~trol,het the^jointly or singly, of any Corporate Defendant or Individual 

Defendant; 

B. 	 Trasfer to the territory of the United States all fmds, documents, and assets 

located outside of the United States which are (1) titled in the narne individually 

or jointly of any Defendant; or (2) held by any person or entity for thc benefit of 

any Defendax; or (3) ulxier any Defendant's direct or indirect control, whether 

jointly or singly; 

C. 	 Hold and retain all repatxiatcd funds, doculncnts, and assets, and prevent any 

transfer, disposition, or dissipation wl~atsoever of any funds or assets, except as 

required by this Order; or fox any h d s ,  documents, or assets held by or ir?the 

name of a Corporate Defendant, t~ansferall. ite-nls to the temporary Receiver; and 

D. 	 Provide the Conmission access to all records of fimds, documents, or assets of 

any Corporate Defendanr and Individual Defendant held by financial institutions 

or other entities or individuals located outside the United Statcs by signlng a 

Consent to Release of Financial Records, to be supplied by Plaintiff, 



W.INTEWEWNCE W T H  REPATRfATION 

IT IS F l . lRmR ORDERED that tbe Defendants are hereby temporarily restrained and 

enjoined from taking any action, directly or indirectly, which may result in the encumbrance or 

dissipation of funds, docm~ents,or assets held outside o f the United States, or in the kndrance of 

the repatriation required by the preceding Section of this Order, itlcludhg but not limited to: 

A. Sending any statenlent, letter, fax, e-mail or wire transmission, teleploning or 

engaging in any other act, directly or indirectly, that results in a d e t e h a t i o n  by a foreipn trustee 

or other entity that a "duress" everlt has occwed under the terns of a foreign trust agreement 

until such time that all assets have been fully repatriated pwsuant to axe preceding Section of &us 

Order; and 

B. NotifYlng any trustee, protector or other agent of any foreign lmst or other related 

entities of eitber the existence of this Order, or of the fact rhat repai-ation is required pursuant to 

a Court Order, until such time that all assets have been fullyrepatriated pursuant to the preceding 

Sectionof this Order. 

VU. APPOINTMENT OF A TEMPORARYXUECEXTTR 

IT IS FURTHER.ORDERED that Yanc W. Moscowitz, Esq. is appointed as temporary 

Receiver for tile Corporate Defendants (hereinafter referred to as "the Receivership 

Dcfe~~dants"),wit11 Ihe f i l l  pourersof an equity Rcceiver, Tbe temporary Receiver shall be the 

agcnt of ffisCourt in acting as Receiver under this Order. 

VTII, DUTIES AND AUTHONTY OF TIXE TEMPORARY RXCEIVER 

IT IS FLRTEXER ORDERED that the temporary Rcceiver is directed and authorized to 

acconlplish the following consistent with this order, the FTC Act and the Franchise Rule: 

A. 	 Assume hll control of the Receivership Defendants by rentoving all Individual 

Defendants, and any officer, illdependent contractor, employee, or agent of the 

Receivership Defendants, &om colltrol and malagerncnt of the affairs of the 

Receivership Defcnciants; 

B. 	 Take exclusive custody, control, and possession of all the fi~nds,property, mail 
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and other assets of, inthe possession of, or under the control of tlze Receivership 

Defendants, wherever sitwed. The temporary Receiver shall have full power to 

sue for, collect, receive and take possession of all goods, chattels, rights, credits, 

moneys, effects, land, leases, books, records, work papers, and records of 

accounts, including computer-maintahed informatian, and other papers and 

docments of the Receivership Deferldants, incIudhg documents related to 

customers or clients whose interests axe now held by or under the direction, 

possession, custody or control of the Receivership Defendants; 

C, 	 Take all steps necessary to secure the business premises and any storage or other 

facilities of the Receivership Defendants, including but not limited to premises 

located at 100 S. Pine Island Road, Plantation, Florida 33324. However, to the 

extent that said location is the residence of any individual Derendant or other 

person, the Receiver shall not deny access to the residence to the individual 

Defendant or other person, If said location is a residence, the Receiver shall have 

access to thc residence between thc hours of 9:00 a. rn. and 5:00 p.m., rulless 

otherwise agreed by thc individual Defendant or other person residing there. If 

said location IS a rcsidencc, the Receiver shall not remove fiont the residence any 

item of personal property which appears to be used for residential living purposes. 

D. 	 Preserve, hold and manage all Receivership assets, and perform all acts Ilccessary 

to preserve tfic value of thosc assets, in order to prevent any loss, damage or illjury 

to customers or clients; 

E. 	 Prevent the withdrawal or misapplication of funds entrusted to the Receivership 

Defendants, and otherwise protect the interests of customers or clien~s; 

F. Manage and administer .the Rcceiversh~p Defendants by performi~~gall acts 

incidental thereto that the temporay Receiver deems appropriate, including hiring 

or dis~nissing any and all personnel or suspending operations; 

G. 	 Collect all money owed to U1e Receivership Defendants; 

H 	 Initiate, defend, compromise, adjust, intervene in, dispose of, or become a party to 

any actions or proceedings in state, federal or foreign c o ~ u ~necessary to prcsenre 
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or increase the assets of rhe Receivership Defextdants or to carry out his or her 

duties pursuant to th is  Order; 

1. 	 Choose, engage and employ attorneys, accomtmts, appraisers, and other 

independent contractors and t e c l ~ c a lspecialists, as the temporary Receiver 

deems advisable or necessary in the petformme o f duties and responsibilities 

under the autboriry granted by this Order; 

J. 	 Issue subpoenas to obtain documents and records pertaining to the Receiversfiip, 

and conduct discovery in this action on behalf of the Receivership estale at ad\/ 

time, including before the discovery conference. See Fed. R. Civ. P. 26Q; 

K. 	 Open o~ie or more bank accounts as designated depositories for funds of the 

Receivership Defendants. The tenlporary Receiver shall deposit all hods of the 

Receivcrship Defendants in such designated accounts and shall make all payments 

and disbursements Eom the Receivership estate from such accounts; 

L. 	 Make payrnenls and disburscments tiom the Receivership estate that are necessary 

or advisable for carrying out tlic directions of, or exercising the authority granted 

by, this Order. a l e  temporary Receiver shall apply to the C O U ~for prior approval 

of m3rpayrnent of any debt or obligation incurred by the Receivership Dcfendants 

prior to &e datc o f  entry of this Order, except for payments that thc temporary 

Receivcr deems necessary ox advisable to secure assets of the Receivership 

Dcfendants; and 

M. 	 Prepare and subtllit a Report to th is Court and 10 the parties, not lcss than twenty-

four hours prior to the scheduled Prelin~inary hjunction Hearing. Such report 

rnay include all ixiforrnation the temporary Receivcr deterrnilies is material to the 

Preliminary Injunction Heaxilig, but must include an accounting of all assets 

de~errninedto exist as of the date of the Report. 

1X. TURNOVER OF PROPERTY TO THE RE;CEIVER 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in-rmedia~ely upon service of this Order upon 01e1-t1, 

Defendants and any other person or entity served with a copy of this Order shall i~nnlediately~or 

Page 12 of 18 

09 /27 /05  TUE 11 : 4 6  [TX/RX NO 78621 



within such time a s  permitted by the temporary Receiver in writing, deliver over to the temporary 

Receiver: 

A. Possession and ctlstody of a 1funds, docmerxts, property, and all other assets, 

o w e d  beneficially or otl~erwise, wherever situated, of the Receivership 

Defendas; 

£3. Possession aad custody o f  documents of the Receivership Defendants, including 

but not Limitedto, all books and records of accounts, all financial and accounting 

records, balance sheets, income statements,b d  records (including rnonaxly 

stateme~zts, canccled checks, records of wire transfers: and check registers), client 

Lists, title documents and other papers; 

C. Possession and custody of all assets being held by or on behalf of the Receiversfup 

Dofe~ldantsor on behalf of the Receivership Defmdanrs'ccustorners; 

D. All keys, con~puterpasswords, entry codes, and combinations to locks necessary 

to gain or to secure access to any of the assets or documents of Uxe Receivership 

Defendants, including but not limited to, access to the Receivership Defendants' 

business prmises, means of communication, accoull~ts, conipuler systems, or 

other pxopeny; and 

E. Wornation identifying all accounts, employees, properties or other assets or 

obligations of the Receivership Defendants. 

X. DUTY TO COOPERATE \VXTN THE RECEIVER 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants and all other persons or entities scrved with 

a copy of this Order shall cooperate fully with and assist the temporary Receiver. This 

cooperation and assistance shall iaclude, but not be limited to, providing any infomxation to the 

ten~poraryReceiver that the temporary Receiver deerxxs necessary to esercislng its authority; 

providing any password required to access any computer or electronic filcs in any medi~1111:and 

discharging tl-iercspor~sibilitiesof the temporary Receiver under this Order, and advising a11 

persons who owe money to the Receivership Defendants Illat ail debts should be paid directly to 

the temporary Receiver. 
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U V - i r - 1 ~ 3  1t:4u prom-~acntnet 02 

23. STAY OF ACTIONS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, except by leave of the Court, during the pendency of 

the Receivership ordered herein, Defendants and all other persons and entities be and hereby are 

stayed from taking any action to establish or enforce any claim, right or interest for, against, on 

behalf of, in,or in the name of, the Receivership Defendants, the tmporary Receiver, 

ReceiverslGp assets, or (he temporary Receiver's duly authorized agents acting in their capacities 

as such, including but not limited to, the following actions: 

A. 	 Conunencing, prosecuting, litigating or enforcing any suit, except that actions 

may be $led to toll any applicable stature of limitations; 

B. 	 Accelerating the due date of any obligation or claimed obligation, exforcing any 

lien. upon, or taking or attempting to take possession OK or retaining possession of, 

propegy of the Receivership Defendants or m y  property claimed by the 

Receiverslip Defendants, or attempting to foreclose, fodeit, alter or terminate my 

of the Receivership Defendants' interests in property, whether such acts arc part 

of a juhcial proceeding or otherwise; 

C, 	 Using self-help or executing or issuing, or causing the execution or issumce of 

any court attachment, subpoena, replevin, execution or othcr process for tile 

purpose of impounding or taking possession of or interfering witll, or creating or 

enforcing a lien upon anyproperty, wherever located, owned by or in thc 

possession of the Receivership Defendants, or the temporary Receiver, or my 

agent of rhe temporary Receiver; axd 

D. 	 Doing any act or thing to interfere with the temporary Receiver taking control, 

possession or management of the property subject to the Receivership, or to in any 

way interfere with the temporary Receiver or thc duties of the temporary Receiver; 

or to irxterfcre with the excIusiv-ejurisdiction of this Court over the property and 

assets of the Receivership Defendants. 

This Paragraph does not stay the eomcncement or contjnuation of an action or proceeding by a 

govenunental unit to enforce such govermeataI unit's police or regulatory power. 
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XlI. COMPENSATION OF Rl3CEIVER 

fT ISF'lYRTmR OEUIEED that the temporary Receiver and all personnel &ed by the 

temporq Receiver as llereia authorized, including counsel to the temporary Receiver, are 

entitled to reasonable compensation for the performance of duties pursumt to &is Order and for 

the cost of actual out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them, ;fromthe assefs now held by, or in the 

possession or c~ntcol of, or which may be received by the Receivership Defendants. The 

temporary Receiver shall file with theCourt and serve on the parties periodic requests for the 

payment of such reasonable compensation, with the first such request filed no more than sixty 

(60) days &er the date of this Order. The temporary Receiver shall not increase&e hourly rates 

used as the bases for such fee applications witbout prior approval of the Court. 

XIXI. IIIIECEIVXi;RySBOND 

IT IS FURTHER OFXlERED that the temporary Receiver shall file with .the Clerk of this 

Court within seven (7) days of the entry o f this order a bond in the sum.of $ 10,000.00 with 

sureties to be approved by the Court, conditioned that the temporary Receiver will well and truly 

perfom the duties of fheoffice and abide by and perform all acts Uxe Cowt directs, 

XIV. blAXNTENANCE OF RECORDS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that all Defendants are restrained and enjoined from 

directly or indirectly destroying, unutilating, erasing, altering, concealing or disposing of, in any 

manner, directly or indirectly, any docume~~tsthat relate to the business practices or business or 

personal finances of any Corporate Defendant or Individual Defendant. 

XV. ACCESS TO RECORDS AND VIREhUSES 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the temporary Receiver and the Defendants sball allow 

representatives of the Conunission imediate  access to all premises where the Defendants are 

conducting brcsiness or have conducted business and to all premises where Defendmts' 

documents may be located, so that the representatives of the Comission may inspect all 

business and financial docments of the Defendants and may copy such documents either on or 
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off the premises. To the extent that documents are located at thehomes of Individual 

Defendartts, such documents shall be m e d  over to the temporary Receiver within 72 hours of 

serviceof the TemporaryRestraining Ckder issued in this case. 

XVI. SERVICE OF ORDER BY FALY 

IT IS FURTHE% ORDESD chat cctpies of this Order may be served by any means, 

including facsimile transmission, upon my financialinstitution or other entity or person that may 

have possession, custody, or control of any documents or assets of any Corporate Defendant or 

Individual Defendant, or that rsrrlay be subject to any provision of this Order. 

XWI. BAlVXUiUPTCY PETITIONS 

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that, in light of the appointment of the temporary Receiver, 

the Receivership Dcfendants are hereby prohibited eom filing a petition for relief under the 

United States Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C.5 101et seq., without prior permission from this 

C0-l.Lt-t. 

XVIII. CONSUMER CREDIT REPORTS 

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED that, pursuant to Section 604 of t l ~ eFair Credit Reporiing 

Act, 15U.S.C. $1681b, any consumer reporting agency may fiunis11 the Cornn~issionor the 

temporary Receiver with a consumer rcport concenling any Defendanr. 

XIX. SERVICE ON THE COMMISSION 

ITIS WRTHER ORDERED that, with regard to any correspondence, pIeadings, or 

rtotifications related to this Order, service 01-1 the Commission shall be performed by persona1 or 

facsimile delivery (but not dcliveryby U.S. Mail) to the attention of WaroId Ki~t-tz,Counsel for 

the Comission, at the Federal Trade Comissioa, 225 Peachtree Streez, Suite 1500, Atlanta, 

Georgia 30303, facsimile amber  (404)656-1379 before 5:00 pm PDT) of the day that such 
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service is due. 

XX. PAPERS ON MOTION FOR PmLXRIOLNAR'Y INJUNCTION 

IT IS ~ T ~ RORDERED that, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ, P. 6(d), mernormda and 

affidavits ,ifmy, supporling or opposing the motion for prelirninq injunctio~lsllall be senred 

not later than one day before t l~epreliminary injunction hearing. 

X X l ,  WITMiSS IDENTXFXCATION 

IT IS FURTKER ORDERED that, if the Defendants intend to present the testimony of any 

witness at the hearing to show cause in this matter, they shall, at least twenty-four (24) hours 

prior to the scheduled date and t ime of heating, serve on counsel for the Plaintiff a statement of 

the name, address, and telephone number of any such witness? at a murudly agreed upon address. 

XXII. Pl[.UELIMINARYINJUNCTXON HEARING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each o f the Corporate Defendants and IndividuaI 

Defendants shall appear before this Court on the 5'' day of October, 2005, at 9:OO o'clock a.m- at 

the United Stares Courthouse, Room 207, to show cause, ifm y  there be, why this C o w  should 

not enter a preliminary injunction, pending final ruling on the Complaint, against said Defendants 

enjoining them from fwher violatiolls of Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 

U.5.C. 4 45(a), and the Franchise Rule, I6  C.F.R. Part 436, continuing the fi-eezeof their assets, 

appointing a permanent Receiver, and imposing such additional relief as may be appropriate. 
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XXUI, COURT'S =TENION OF JURfSDICTION 

IT IS FUXTI3E.RORDERBZ) that this Court retainsjurisdiction of this matter for all 

purposes. k%-
SOT. 

SO O m E W D , this 271h day of-, 2005, at this hour of 9:aA A, m .  

United States District Judge 
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